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December 10, 2021 

To: Hon. Robert Pellegrino, Chair and Planning Board Members 

From: David B. Smith 

Re:  657 Saw Mill River Road  

Cc: Larry Tomasso, Building Inspector 

Project Update and Summary 

The Planning Board has recently received an updated site plan submission from JMC on behalf of Thornwood 
Four Corners LLC for the redevelopment of the former Getty gas station located at 657 Saw Mill River Road 
(the “Project Site”).  As the Planning Board will recall, this matter was last before your Honorable Board for a 
preliminary presentation back in April of 2021.  The April presentation was part of the formal referral from 
the Village Board, which is the Lead Agency under the State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) process.  
The Planning Board is guided in their review and recommendation back to the Village Board by Section 167-3 
of the Village Code, specifically Section 167-3.E. Standards and objectives. 

The Project Site previously had two gasoline pump islands (four fueling stations), a four-bay service garage 
and limited convenience retail.  The current proposal calls for the installation of three gasoline pump islands 
(six fueling stations) and a proposed 2,520 square foot convenience store supported by 17 parking spaces (the 
“Proposed Action”).  The Project Site is owned by Thorpe-McCartney Family Limited Partnership (hereinafter 
“Thorpe-McCartney”) and leased to Thornwood Four Corners (hereinafter “Thornwood”) (hereinafter 
collectively the “Applicant”).  By way of background, back in 2016 Thornwood entered into a lease with 
Thorpe-McCartney to reuse the site for a gasoline pumping station and convenience store.  As part of that 
process Thornwood obtained a permit from the Village of Ardsley Building Department (on or about 4/20/16) 
for the installation of new fuel storage tanks and fuel dispensing pumps.  Subsequently, it was learned during 
the storage tank replacement process that there was soil contamination which has since been remediated 
although there is still ongoing NYSDEC oversight.   

It is noted that gas stations are prohibited uses in the B-1 General Business District, although the Getty station 
had been operating as a legal, pre-existing, non-confirming use.  During the remediation process the question 
was raised whether the pre-existing non-conforming gas station use had been lost.  On 1/28/18, the Village of 
Ardsley Zoning Board of Appeals determined that the pre-existing gas station use was not abandoned, allowing 
for its continued renovation and operation. 

The Applicant has provided responses to comments raised by this office as well as other Village consultants 
and NYS DOT (see attached correspondence from NYS DOT submitted after the April 2021 meeting) as part of 
their December 1, 2021, submission.   
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As part of the review comments from this office it was requested that a summary of any recommendations 
from the Village’s recently adopted Comprehensive Plan be provided.  While the Applicant updated the 
relevant section of the EAF that addresses Planning and Zoning Actions, specific references to the 
recommendations was not provided.  To assist in the review please see the following excerpt.  

 

It is noted that while the Comprehensive Plan identifies as a goal the redevelopment for “highest and best” 
use, this must be tempered by the rights of the property owner to redevelop the site consistent with the 
Village’s Zoning Board of Appeals decision that determined that the pre-existing gas stations use was not 
abandoned, allowing for its continued renovation and operation.   

Based on the revised plans, the responses provided it and given the constrained nature of the site and the 
various separation requirements for the different uses it would be important to discuss with the Applicant 
how site management can be enhanced to help with the coordination of deliveries (fuel, supplies and garbage 
pickup).  Given that the facility is proposed to be operated 24/7, can the Applicant provides some assurances 
that deliveries can be made when site activity and use is at its lowest? 

Last, the Planning Board will need to discuss whether they have been provided sufficient information to 
prepare a review and recommendation back to the Village Board or whether as part of those deliberations the 
Planning Board would like to see additional information and/or the other remaining technical reports provided 
(stormwater management and environmental cleanup).  It is noted that in the formal referral to the Planning 
Board, the Village Board did ask that the SWPPP be provided for review.   
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The other item that was raised one our initial review was whether the proposed improvements are located 
within Special Flood Hazard Zone associated with the adjacent Bramble Brook and if so there should prepare 
and submit the appropriate Floodplain Development Permit materials. 




